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\Lthe month of June, 1887, & nmnber of
the young people of Knox Church congre-
gation formed a sociely for the purpose
of doing any mission work that might be
found necessary, as well as to do other
work in connection with the church.

There being no Presbyterian Church north of
Cannon street, except in the extreme east end of
the eity, and no Sunday School of any kind in that
portion of the city, west of John street, the advis-
ability of organizing a Sunday School was con-
sidered.  Some of the members consented to can-
vas this district in search of scholars, and bills
were posted in faclories and other places announe-
ing the opening of the School. The only snitable
room which could be secured was in Grant's sail
loff, at the foot of Bay street. This room was pre-
pared, and on Sunday morning, January 1sl, 1888,
al half-past nine, sixteen teachers and fifteen
scholars assembled.

With some diflienlty the names of those presen!
on that day have been found. The scholars were :
Carrie Holmes, Maggie Griflin, Louisa Richardson,
Charlotle Barker, Maggie Barker, Fred Holmes,
Joseph Smith,  James  Dilworth,  John  Griffi.
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Stephen Griffin, Willie Gritfin, Radecliffe Richard-
son, Willie Richardson, Robert Phillips, George
Barker.

The teachers were : Mr. W. H. McLaren, Mr
\. McPherson, Mr. T. H. Smith, Mr. W. J. Cun-
ningham, Capl. A. H. Malcolmson, Mr. James
Johnson, Mr. James Davidson, Mr. James Ed-
wards, Mr. Fred. Pecover, Miss S. H. McKean,
Miss Minnie Pulling, Miss Bessie MeClure, Miss
Ida Malecolmson, Miss Martha Richardson, Miss
Jennie Richardson. Miss Annie Munro, Miss Annie
Mitchell and Miss Belle Gillespie.

Of these teachers many are still aclively en-
gaged in Sunday School work, either in our own
city or elsewhere

In order to keep up (he altendance and to seeure
more pupils, some of the teachers called for the
pupils on the Sunday mornings, and a thorough
canvas of the district was made, so that by the
close of the first vear the number on the roll was
116, with an average attendance of 102, Tt soon
became necessary (o find another building to meel
in, as the one then occupied conld only be had
for a few months, and that onlv throngh the kind-
ness of friends. As no suitable buoilding could bhe
rented, it was proposed [o build a school. At the
congregational meeting of Knox Church o build-
ing committee was appointed, and a resolution
was passed appropriating 500 from the funds of
the Church. towards the purchase of a lot on whiech
lo erect a Mission Sunday Sehool. A« the owners
of the sail-loft required the place for their own
nge, we had to leave it earlier in the vear than we
expected, and there being no other bnilding avail-
able, we were compelled to hold our School in the
basement of Knox Church.  This move redueed
the attendanee o a great extent. A eirenlar was
prepared and issued to the eongregation, soliciting
cubseriptions towards the  eraction of a Sehonl
which was heartilv responded ta. Donations of
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money were reccived from Knox Church Sunday
School  Classes, [rom  the Christian Endeavor
Society, and from friends who were not conneeted
with the congregation.  When the building was
completed other friends eontributed to the furnish-
ing of the School such gilts as gas fixtures, a clock,
u stove, lumber for a wood-shed, etc.; and on the
lust day of June, 1889, our new School was opened,
free of debt, althongh no subscriptions had been
solicited personally. Rev Dr. Fraser, pastor of
Knox Church, conducled the opening service. He
chose as his subject the very appropriate words
found in Rev. iii. 8: * Behold, 1 have set before
thee an open door, and no man ecan shut it."”
F'rom that time until the close of the year the
average allendance was 143,

In the beginning ol 1890 il was thought to be
for the best interests ol the School that it should
be held in the afternoon, instead of in the morning,
and to be conducted by a separate staff of teachers
and officers from that of the Home School. The
change accordingly took place, and the School
met in the afternoon at 3 o'clock. This reduced
lhe attendance considerablv, as a number of the
pupils altended other Sunday Schools in the after-
noon. This change also caused the loss of our
Superintendent, Mr. W. H. McLaren, to whose
untiring zeal much of the success of the past two
vears was due. He still occupied the position of
Superintendent in the Home School, and therefore
could not remain with the Mission. Mr. John
Madill was elected to the position and ocenpied it
for one year.

During this year a sum of money was appro-
priated by the teachers for the purchase of books
for a library. These, together with donations from
Knox Sunday School, placed us in possession of a
number of useful books which were gladly wel-
comed by the scholars. On Thanksgiving Day of
the same year the first weekly prayer-meeting was
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held, and these meetings were held regularly on
Thursday evenings for some years.

At the annual meeting of the congregation in
1801, it was agreed lo engage a student from Knox
College to work in connection with the Mission for
the summer months, and Mr. H. A, McPherson
was appointed.  He confined his labors to (he
district lying between John street and the Bay and
north of Strachan street, the object being to work
this district as thoroughly as possible. Two
hundred and sevenly-five families were visiled,
of whom a large number were non-church goers.
Many of these were visiled [requently in order
lo interest them in the Mission.  During this year
about 100 new books were added Lo the library and
a number of others donated by friends. Toward
the close of the year a Young People’s Sociely was
formed for mutual improvement, and some very
profitable meetings were held, the membership
being 65. Mr. T. H. Smith was Superintendent
during this year.

In the year 1892, Mr. H. A. MecPherson again
had charge of the work during the summer
months, and as in the previons year, he worked
faithfully and sueccessfully. To him and other
friends we owe sincere thanks for their suecessful
efforts to secure donations of lumber and money
for the erection of the fence which now encloses
the Mission property, thus improving ils appear-
ance, and also for the further improvement of the
ot by sodding, planting flowers, and keeping them
in order. During the remainder ol the vear a
student from Knox College condueted the Sunday
evening services,

Mr. John Smith, who had been elected Super-
intendent for 1892, having to leave the city early
in the year. was sneceeded by Mr. R. MacRae,
who remained until the elose of next vear, when
his services were required hy Knox Snnday Sehool.
At the annual meeling of the econgregation in
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1803, a step forward was laken, the Session being
authorized to secure a suitable man to work in
connection with the Mission, all the year round,
and also to act as an assistant to the Pastor. The
services of Mr. Duncan Robertson were secured,
and he worked most faithfully, from the early parl
ol the year until January, 1894, when he received
and accepted a call to King Street Chureh, London.

During this year the inlerior ol the building
was painted and kalsomined, and a new library
was oblained. A Junior Endeavor Sociely was
organized on December 10th, 1894, with a mem-
bership of 37, and continued for about ten years
to do good work in visiting the sick, distributing
flowers to these, and calling on absent scholars
During this time Miss J. W. Binney, of Knox
Church, ably fulfilled the duties of Superintendent
ol this Society. A frame addition was also made
to the Sunday School building, which served the
double purpoge of kitchen and primary class room.
This room proved a great convenience to the
primary class.

On the return lo college of Mr. H. A, MePher-
son, the work was given into the hands of Mr. J.
G. Cheyne, the Superintendent, who was then
looking forward to the ministry. He worked very
energetically until leaving for college in October,
1895, after which the evening services were con-
tinued by the Session of Knox Church for some
time. Mr. Cheyne was succeeded as Superinten-
dent by Mr. J. W. Stevenson. Twenty-nine
scholars earned prizes for regular attendance dur-
ing 1895, and the School was able to hand the sum
of 875 over to the managers of Knox Church to
help defray our expenses,

In the vear 1897 the walls of our building were
wainscotted and the present library was buill.
$25 was expended in new books, $50 was given
to Knox Church managers, and $30 to Missions.

In 1898 a brick addition, containing two rooms,
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was built al the rear of the main building, thus
providing much-needed accommodation for the
Primary, and the Young Men's Bible Classes.
This addition cost %399, and was opened free ol
debt, the money having been cheerfully contribul-
ed by Iriends of the Mission, who were canvassed
by the teachers.

In the year 1899 a Tuesday alternoon meeling
for mothers was organized, largely through the
energy of one of our teachers, Mrs. Mansergh,
She acled as President and devoted muech of her
time visiting the homes of the people.  This meel-
ing developed into what was afterwards known
as the Dorcas Sociely, with Mrs. W. T. Evans,
of Knox Church, as President ; and it in turn was
succeeded by the Ladies' League, al presenl pre-
sided over by Mrs. Jas. P. Coutts. Miss Halerow
was the Bible teacher at these meelings for years.
and many delightful hours were spent in study
under her leadership. Much praise is due this
faithful band of women for the share they have
had in building up the work of the Mission. They
have practically mothered the School, and have
given liberally of their funds towards (h comfort
and adornment of the bnilding.

In 1899 Mr. J. W, Stevenson resigned the duties
of Superintendent to go to the West, finally enter-
ing Manitoba College in preparation for the min-
istry. He was sncceeded by Mr. R. McRae, who
was a former Superinlendent and a general favor-
ite at the Mission. In the vear 1900 Mr. McRae's
business duties required his removal from the
city. Mr. Samuel Groves and the lale Mr. Alex.
McPherson were then appoinled to act as interim
Superintendents, until the month of September,
when Mr. W. J. Cunningham, of the Home School,
was elected to fill the vaecancy. On  Christmas
Sunday of that year the Mission held its first union
service with the scholars of the Home School in
their spacions bnilding, and these annual gather-
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ings have been a pleasant feature of the Christmas
season ever since. On New Year's Eve, al the
suggestion of some of our young men, a watch-
night service was conducled by Mr. J. G. Cheyne,
as a fitting introduction to the twentieth century.

In 1901 the co-operation of the scholars was
invited towards raising funds for the purchase ol
u furnace. The quarterly collections were sel
aside for that purpose, and so hearty was the
response that $111.55 was raised. The furnace
was installed that fall, the young men ol the
School doing the necessary excavaling themselves.
Mr. J. G. Cheyne condueted prayer-meetings dur-
ing his college vacation that year.

In 1902 the Cradle Roll, for infants under three
vears of age, was instiluted with Mrs. Cunning-
ham as Superintendent. The quarterly collections,
amounting to $100, were given towards the sup-
port of a missionary in Red Deer, Alberta. $100
was also spent on new books for the library.

In 1903 Mr. Maurice Festing conducted a week-
ly prayer-meeting for some time, and during the
winter months, at the suggestion of the pastor of
Knox Church, Rev. E. A. Henry, B. A, the School
was kepl open every evening as a counter attrae-
tion to the saloons. Games, amusements, and re-
freshments were supplied, under the supervision
of two of our teachers, James IHavers and James
Scott, and with the aid of the Dorcas Society.

The year 1904 was a very trving one. Hamil-
ton Presbytery obtained the consent of Knox
Church to take over the work of the Mission, but
after keeping the School in suspense for months
the idea was finally abandoned. Meanwhile in-
difference prevenfed progress, and the teaching
staff was crippled by the loss of manyv valuable
workers. The quarterly collections (. this and
the preceding vear, amounling in all to $200, were
sent to mission fields in the North-West.

Early in 1905 the teachers determined to make
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an effort to have preaching services again re-
vived, and the quarterly collections were donated
towards a fund with that object in view. The rool
of the building was reshingled that yvear al a cosl
of $85. As an experiment, the school met from 2
to 8 o'clock during the summer months, with the
result that there was better allendance and inter-
est than ever before during the hot season.  This
time-table has becn in foree from June to  Sep-
tember every year since.

As a part of the policy outlined by the leachers
varly in 1905, the Mission requested the congre-
gation of Knox Church, at ils annual meeling in
January, 1906, to permit a revival of the preaching
services, the cosl of same, during the summer
wonths, to be borne by the Mission. This per-
mission was heartily granted, and a commitlee
was appointed to assist in financing the undertak-
ing, should this be necessary. Mr. D. A. MacKay.
I3, A, of Knox College, was engaged for this work.
and morning and evening services were conducled
by him from 1t May until the re-opening of
College in October. This voung man worked the
field very faithfully, but he had not been in good
heallh for some time, and shorlly alter his return
to eollege he took seriously ill and died in the
Toronto hospital.  He was suceeeded by Mr. H
M. Paulin, B. A, also of Knox College.  Mr. Paulin
came up every week from Toronto for the Sunday
serviees during the winter term, and when College
closed in March, 1907, he devoted all his time to
the field. As a result of these services every
branch of (he work took on new life.  The people
contributed so well that it was not found neces-
sary to seck help from the committee appointed
by Knox Chureh, although some of the members
of it voluntarily contributed generously. It was
found necessary to have a choir to lead the ser-
vice of praise, and as there was abundance of
material amongst the adnlt classes of the school,
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I'rol. Johnson was invited to come down and or-
gunize a choir, which he cheertully did. This
organization has had several leaders, bul it is still
doing faithful work, and is contribuling an im-
portant part towards the enjoyment of the Sunday
services. An additional stimulus lowards the en-
thusiasm aund attendance in the school, was the
introduction, in October, 1906, of the Robt. Raikes’
Diploma System, by which honor marks are given
for home study, church and Sunday-school attend-
ance, Bibles brought to school, and colleclion.  As
the result of a year's test of this system, 35 mem-
bers of the school received diplomas for having
ecarned at least 85 per cent. of the tolal marks
diven.

In June, 1906, the school sustained a great loss
in the death of Mr. Thos. G. Mcllroy, who had been
the faithful and eflicient secretary for a number
of years, and who was a universal favorite.

Early in 1907, the Young Men's and the Young
Women's Bible classes each organized along Lhe
lines of the new Adult Bible Class Movement.
This resulled in a steady growth in atlendance in
the adult department of the school. These young
people began to feel the need of mutual help along
literary and social lines and to meet this want there
was organized in the fall of 1907, a Men's Leaguc
and a Yonng Ladies' Mission Band, each with ils
officers and commiltees. Both of these organiza-
tions are doing excellent work for their members,
besides inleresting young people in the various
serviees of the mission. In August, 1907, the in-
terior of our building was painted and decorated,
adding greatly to ils altacliveness. This was
made possible through a donation of $100 from
the Ladies’ League, realized by the sale of their
needlework.

In October, 1907, Miss Annie Milchell, the
superintendent of the Primary Department, felt
obliged to give up her work, and take a complete
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rest. This was a great loss to the school. She
served the school faithfully and efficiently for
many vears, and her scholars bear the imprint
of her sterling influence and thorough teaching
I' is to Miss Mitchell thal we are largely indebted
for the first seven years' history of our work,
the publication prepared by her in 189 having
been copied almost verbatim in this review.

In October, 1907, Mr. Paulin went to Glasgow
to conlinue his studies, and he was succeeded for
the winter term by Mr. H. R. Pickup, ). A, of
Knox College. Under his leadership the work
showed remarkable growth in all ils branches.

At the close of the year Mr. W. J. Cunuingham,
who had served the Sunday School as Superin-
tendent for over seven years was obliged through
il health to retire from active duly in the mission,
and we take this opportunity of stating that much
of the success which has aitended the mission in
these later years is due to Mr. and Mrs. Cunning-
ham's untiring efforts in School and Church ser-
vices. The mission is poorer becanse of their
retirement.  Mr. Cunningham was succeeded in
the Superintendancy of the School by Mr. Robt. J.
Anderson, who has filled the position with credit
to himself, and to the general advaniage of the
school. Mr. James Scott, one of our popular
teachers was appointed to act as assistant Super-
intendent, and he too has acquitled himsell eredit-
ably.

Prior io the beginning of 1908 the mission
workers had made several appeals to the session
of Knox Church for the holding of a communion
service and a separate communion roll, and this
was finally granted, the first communion being
held on Sabbath evening, January 12th, at which
the Rev. D. H. Fletcher, D. D., interim moderator,
presided. 142 communicants took part, of whom
71 were new members, 54 joining by profession,
and 17 by certificate. To all who attended it was
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a delightful and impressive service. The elders who
nssisted on that occasion were : \Wm. Gillespie. J.
\. Moffat, J. G. Gibson, J. M. Gow, €. W. Luing.
Samuel Groves and Robt. Booth. On the evening of
January 27th, the first congregational meeling was
held. It was presided over by Mr. H. R. Pickup.
the student in charge. A Board of Management
was elected comprising the following persons :
Gieorge Anstie, Win. Henderson and \Wm. Urquarl
lo serve for one yvear: George J. Miller. J. A. Moffat
and Wm. Hall, for two yvears: R. ). Anderson,
James Scott and John Young, for three years.

The envelope system for giving for current ex-
penses was also adopted.  After the evening ser-
vice on April 5th, a petition was adopted and
afterward signed by 193 members and adherents
of the mission, asking Knox Church session to
apply to the Presbylery for permission to organ-
ize a separate congregation, but as Knox Church
was then without a setlled pastor this petition
was not presented until June 7th, the Rev. A. E.
Mitchell, B. A., having in the meantime become
pastor. Rev. Mr. Mitchell very kindly undertook
to lay the whole case before the Presbytery, and
they recommended that at the close of the summer
term an ordained minister be engaged for one
vear. the mission agreeing to this arrangement.
In April, Mr. Pickup, who had been engaged to
take np mission work in the West, was succeeded
by Mr. H. M. Paulin, who worked in this field
Aduring the summer of 1907, On Sabbath, May 24,
the second communion was held. Tt was presided
aver by Rev. D. H. Fletcher, D. D., 22 names were
added to the roll, 10 on profession and 12 by cer-
tificate.

Another forward move was made when on the
evening of Sepl. 21st, three elders were elected
viz.; Robt. I. Anderson. George Anstie and James
Jolley. the latter subsequently deeclining to act.

A Boys' League was organized on Monday even-
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ing, Ocl. 12th, under (he oversight of the Men's
League.

Mr. Paulin, after a faithful summer's work,
returned lo college in October, and the congre-
gation, acting on the recommendation of the Pres-
bytery, heard candidales with a view to the selec-
lion of an ordained minister, to take the oversight
of the work. The following persons were heard :
Rev. Hogh Matheson, Rev. John Smith, Rev. David
dames, Rev. H. D. Cameron : and al a congrega-
tional meeting held after service on Sabbath even-
ing, Nov. I5th, presided over by Rev. Mr. Mitchell,
the Rev. Mr. Cameron received the almost unani-
mous vole of those presenl.

Mr. Cameron subsequently accepted the call
and commenced his duties on Sabbath, Dec. 20th.

It is a matler of greal salisfaction that we are
able to close this history of the past twenty-one
vears with the knowledge hat an ordained min-
ister has at last been placed in charge of the
work : thus realizing the fond hopes entertained
for vears past by many of our most aelive
workers.

God's richest blessing has undoubledly allend-
e the work of His servants thus far in this field
of labor. May He as abundantly bless whalever
may be undertaken in the future, so that both
pastor and people may be wisely directed in the
advancement of His Kingdom in this part of onp
city.
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Average attendance and collection in the Sunday
School for the past twenty-one years:

Yr.  Attndee. Coll. Yr.  Attndee. Coll.
1888 102 — 1599 148 $3.56
1889 143 $2.21 1900 144 3.60
1890 129 2.03 1901 161 6.21
1891 155 2.26 1902 175 6.85
1892 177 2.76 1903 17 6.96
1803 197 243 1904 159 6.90
1894 168 2.57 1005 166 6.50
1805 150 2.73 1906 167 8.47
1896 150 2.80 1907 208 9.80
1897 142 2.58 1008 220 7.24
1898 164 3.22

OFFICE BEARERS FOR THE YEAR 1908,

ELDERS,
Robt. J. Anderson, (George Anstie
(Under the supervision of the Session of Knox Church.)
MANAGERS,

Chairman, Geo. J. Miller
Secretary, Wm. Henderson
Treasurer, John Young
George Anstie, Wm. Urquhart, John A. Moffat, Wi
Hall, Robt, J. Anderson, James J. Scott,
Caretaker—Muys. J. Anderson

CHOIR.

President, Charles Havers
Secretary-Treasurer, Miss Kate Sinclaii
Librarian, Robt. Muir
Leader, George Ogilvie
Organist, Miss E. T. Hawkins

SUNDAY SCHOOL

Honorary Sapt., W. J. Cunningham
Superintendent, Robt. J. Anderson
Asst. Superintendent, James J. Scott
Secvetary, Fred. Miller
Asst. Secretary, Wm. Pottruff
Treasurer, Miss M. Anderson
Librarvian, J. M. Gow
Asst. Libravian, Edgar Miller
Organist, Robt. Havers
Asst. Organist, Miss Bella Anderson

HAMILTON PUBLIC |
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SUNDAY SCHOOL—Continued

Auditors, Miss E. J. Stewart and Miss E. B. Disher
Hon. Supt. of Cradle Roll, Mrs. W. J. Cunningham
Supt. of Cradle Roll, Mrs. David Sinclair
Supt. of Primary Dept., Miss C. Mitchell

Teachers—Misses F. McKenzie, A. McKenzie, Kate
Sinclair, Christina Mitchell, Mary McManus, Bella
Anderson, J. Robertson, E. J. Stewart, Kate
Brown, N. Archibald, M. Anderson, E. Miller,
Maud McFadden, 1. McFadden, E. B. Disher, Mes-
dames David Sinclair, Jas. P. Coutts, E. Hill, (.
Bolton, Edmonstone, Messrs, (ieo. Anstie, John A.
Moffat, B. Malcolmson, Jas. J. Scott.

LADIES' LEAGUE
Precident, Mys. J. P. Coutts
Vice-President, Mrs. Wm. Hall
Secretary, Mrs. E. Hill

Treasurer, Mrs. R. J. Anderson
Convenor of Sewing Committee, Mrs. J. Anderson
Convenor of Relief Committee, Mrs. D. Sinclair

Convenor of Visiting Committee, Mrs. W. H. Long

Auditors, Mrs. C. Patterson and Mrs. Wm. Hall

MEN'S LEAGUE
President, George Hobson
Vice-President, Ralph Douglas
Secretary-Treasurer, W. C. Young
Press Agent, Jas. Gorman.

YOUNG LADIES' MISSION BAND
President, Miss Maud McFadden
Vice-President, Miss E. T. Hawkins
Treasurer, Miss J. McIntosh
Secretary, Miss J. Young
BOYS' LEAGUE
President, George Yates
Vice-President, Alex. Garvey '
Secretary, Robt. Gardiner
News Agent, Raymond Reid

PASTORS OF KNOX CHURCH DURING OUR
HISTORY
1888-1902— Rev. Mungo Fraser. D. D,
1903-1906—Rev. E. A. Henry, B. A.

1906 1907—-Rev. 8. B. Nelson, D. D
1908 Rev. A, E. Mitchell, B. A
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